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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q
[X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) ODHE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19:
For the Fiscal Quarter Ended February 26, 2012 or
[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d¥ ®HE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19:

For the Transition period from to
Commission file number:0-27446

LANDEC CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Delaware
(State or other jurisdiction 94-302561¢
of (IRS Employer
incorporation or Identification Number)

organization)

3603 Haven Avenue
Menlo Park, California 94025
(Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code:
(650) 306-1650

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirdilésuch reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for at leastplast 90 days.

Yes _X No _

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant asnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥bsite, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRide 405 of Regulation S-T during the precedi@gnonths (or for such shorter period

that the registrant was required to submit and posh files).
Yes_ X_ No__

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See definition of “large accelerated’fild “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportingnepany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.

Large Accelerated Filer Accelerated Filer X
Non Accelerated Filer Smaller Reporting Company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgfe Act).
Yes No_ X
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

February 26, May 29,
2012 2011
(Unaudited) Q)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivale $ 12,53 $ 8,13¢
Marketable securitie 25,09« 28,12«
Accounts receivable, less allowance for dlilaccounts of $385 and $342 at February 26
2012 and May 29, 2011, respectiv 23,36¢ 21,64¢
Accounts receivable, related pz 37¢ 452
Income taxes receivalt 21z 571
Inventories, ne 19,93: 20,16:
Notes and advances receive 50¢ 5
Deferred taxe 1,674 542
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,41( 5,987
Total Current Asset 86,10¢ 85,62¢
Investment in nc-public company, nc-fair value 793 793
Investment in nc-public company, fair valu 20,38¢ 15,66:
Property and equipment, r 51,79 51,77¢
Goodwill, net 36,46: 36,46:
Trademarks/tradenames, | 12,42¢ 12,42¢
Customer relationships, n 3,13¢ 3,36¢
Other assets 441 19€
Total Assets $ 211,54¢ $ 206,31.
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 1445. $ 16,747
Related party accounts paya 217 30C
Accrued compensatic 3,91¢ 3,08(
Other accrued liabilitie 12,717 3,581
Deferred revenu 344 2,657
Current portion of long-term debt 4,33( 4,33(
Total Current Liabilities 35,97¢ 30,69¢
Long-term debt, less current portir 12,17( 15,50(
Deferred taxe 12,621 11,33¢
Other non-current liabilities 1,161 11,05
Total Liabilities 61,93¢ 68,58¢
Stockholder Equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 shatoazed; 25,544,022 and 26,405,799
shares issued and outstanding at February 26, &@d RMay 29, 2011, respective 2€ 27
Additional pai-in capital 121,04: 119,16¢
Accumulated other comprehensive | (202 (267)
Retained earnings 27,04 17,12¢
Total Stockholder Equity 147,90¢ 136,05!
Non controlling interest 1,70z 1,671
Total Equity 149,61( 137,72t
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 211,54t $ 206,31:

(1) Derived from audited financial statements.
See accompanying notes.




Revenues
Product sale
Services revenue, related pa
License fees

Total revenue

Cost of revenue
Cost of product sale

Cost of product sales, related pe

Cost of services revenue
Total cost of revenu

Gross profit

Operating costs and expens
Research and developmt

Selling, general and administrative
Total operating costs and expenses

Operating incom:

Dividend income
Interest incom

Interest expens

Other income (expense)
Net income before taxe
Income tax expense
Consolidated net incon
Non controlling interes

Net income applicable to Common Stockholc $

Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share
Shares used in per share computa

Basic
Diluted

LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ende

Nine Months Ende:

February 26 February 27 February 26 February 27
2012 2011 2012 2011
$ 79,368 $ 71,49C $ 229,577 $ 201,47(
54& 54¢ 2,33( 2,60(
154 1,47(C 3,02¢ 4,56(
80,06« 73,50¢ 234,93! 208,63(
65,49: 60,32: 191,78 167,52:
94C 227 3,812 2,74¢
46C 482 1,907 2,20¢
66,89: 61,03: 197,50: 172,48(
13,17 12,47¢ 37,43: 36,15(
2,47: 2,27t 7,142 6,762
6,664 6,45¢ 19,17 18,18:
9,137 8,73 26,31« 24,94¢
4,03t 3,74 11,11¢ 11,20¢
281 47 844 47
63 12C 21¢ 344
(159 (19¢) (492) (631)
3,50¢ (44) 4,59¢ (14€)
7,732 3,672 16,28¢ 10,81¢
(2,920 (1,350 (6,079 (3,917
4,81¢ 2,322 10,20¢ 6,90¢
(49) (24) (28¢) (257)
4,765 $ 2,29t $ 9917 $ 6,657
$ 0.1¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 03¢ $ 0.2¢
$ 0.1¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 03¢ $ 0.2¢
25,53¢ 26,37¢ 25,94« 26,39¢
25,82t 26,63¢ 26,20¢ 26,65¢

See accompanying notes.




LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

(In thousands)

Nine Months Ende:

February 26, February 27,
Cash flows from operating activities: 2012 2011
Consolidated net incon $ 10,20 $ 6,90¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizati 4,111 3,91(
Stocl-based compensation expel 1,314 1,39¢
Tax benefit from stoc-based compensation expel (5,517 (2,019
Increase in receivable from Monsanto for guaranteadination fee — (600)
Deferred taxe 157 1,237
Change in investment in n-public company (fair market valu (4,726 —
Changes in current assets and current liabili
Accounts receivable, n (1,719 (667)
Accounts receivable, related pa 75 55€
Income taxes receiva 5,87( 2,361
Inventories, ne 22¢ (2,827
Issuance of notes and advances recei\ (3,699 (3,069
Collection of notes and advances receivi 3,19¢ 3,11¢
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 3,571 824
Accounts payabl (2,295 731
Related party accounts paya (83 (289)
Accrued compensatic 837 842
Other accrued liabilitie (697) 43€
Deferred revenue (2,319 (42E)
Net cash provided by operating activit 8,53¢ 12,43¢
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipm (3,899 (4,875
Purchase of marketable securi (25,679 (57,607)
Proceeds from maturities of marketable secur 19,58: 19,98(
Proceeds from sales of marketable secur 9,12¢ 26,28’
Investment in non-public company (fair market value — (15,000
Net cash used in investing activit| (862) (31,210)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Repurchase of outstanding common st (5,007 (1,189
Taxes paid by Company for stock swaps and R (38) (57
Proceeds from the sale of common st 91 12¢
Tax benefit from stoc-based compensation expel 5,511 2,017
Principal payments on lo-term deb: (3,330 (2,940
(Increase) decrease in other as (249 38
Payments to minority interest holders (257) (362)
Net cash used in financing activiti (3,274 (2,362)
Net increase in cash and cash equival 4,39¢ (21,139
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 8,13¢ 27,81
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 12,53: $ 6,67¢
Supplemental schedule of noncash operating aetviti
Income tax expense not payable $ 5511 $ 2.017
Long-term receivable from Monsanto for guarantethination fee - % 60C
Unrealized loss from interest rate swap $ 65 40

See accompanying notes




LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

1. Organization, Basis of Presentation anBummary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landacthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aidpolymer products for
food and agricultural products, medical devices lesshsed partner applications that incorporatedea’s patented polymer
technologies. The Company has two proprietarymelytechnology platforms: 1) Intelimer® polymeasd 2) hyaluronan (“HA")
biopolymers. The Company’s HA biopolymers are pietpry in that they are specially formulated fpesific customers to meet strict
regulatory requirements. The Company’s polymernetdgies, along with its customer relationships ttiade names, are the foundation, and
a key differentiating advantage upon which Landes luilt its business. The Company sells speqgutkaged fresh-cut vegetables and
whole produce to retailers and club stores, prilpamithe United States, Asia and Canada, throtgjApio, Inc. (“Apio”) subsidiary, HA-
based biomaterials through its Lifecore Biomeditrad, (“Lifecore”) subsidiary, and Intellicoat® cieal seed products through its Landec Ag
LLC (“Landec Ag”) subsidiary.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finant@éments of Landec have been prepared in accadeitit accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stedeterim financial information and with the imsttions for Form 10-Q and Article 10 of
Regulation S-X. In the opinion of managementadjustments (consisting of normal recurring ac&uladve been made which are necessary
to present fairly the financial position at Febgua6, 2012 and the results of operations and daslsffor all periods presented. Although
Landec believes that the disclosures in these ¢iadrtatements are adequate to make the informptiesented not misleading, certain
information normally included in financial statenteand related footnotes prepared in accordandeagitounting principles generally
accepted in the United States have been condenseditbed in accordance with the rules and regoitetiof the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The accompanying financial data shbaldeviewed in conjunction with the audited finahstatements and accompanying
notes included in Landec's Annual Report on ForaKX0r the fiscal year ended May 29, 2011.

The results of operations for the nine months ertddatuary 26, 2012 are not necessarily indicatimtb@results that may be
expected for an entire fiscal year because theserige seasonality in Apio’s food business, paridy] Apio’s Food Export business and the
order patterns of Lifecore’s customers which magdle significant fluctuations in Landec’s quanegsults of operations.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are presenmtete accrual basis of accounting in accordariteWS. generally accepted
accounting principles and include the accountsasfdec and its subsidiaries, Apio, Lifecore and lean@flg. All material inter-company
transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Arrangements that are not controlled through votingimilar rights are reviewed under the guidaiocerariable interest entities
(“VIES”). A company is required to consolidate the assethiliies and operations of a VIE if it is determthto be the primary beneficiary
the VIE.

An entity is a VIE and subject to consolidationbyf design: a) the total equity investment at isskot sufficient to permit the entity
to finance its activities without additional subwrated financial support provided by any partiesjuding equity holders or b) as a group the
holders of the equity investment at risk lack ang of the following three characteristics: (i) f@ver, through voting rights or similar rights
to direct the activities of an entity that mostrsfggantly impact the entity’s economic performan(g the obligation to absorb the expected
losses of the entity, or (iii) the right to recette expected residual returns of the entity. Then@any reviewed the consolidation guidance
and concluded that the non-public companies in lvtie Company holds equity investments are not VIEs




Under applicable accounting guidance, a Comparmyaiasidered the requirements to consolidate aty @mtwhich it holds voting
control and concluded that due to the lack of \@tiontrol, the Company is not required to constdidae investments in non-public
companies.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplequires management to
make certain estimates and judgments that affecatimounts reported in the financial statementssandmpanying notes. The accounting
estimates that require management’s most signif@ad subjective judgments include revenue recmgnisales returns and allowances;
recognition and measurement of current and defénmine tax assets and liabilities; the assessofastoverability of long-lived assets; the
valuation of intangible assets and inventory; thkiation and nature of impairments of investmeautst the valuation and recognition of
stock-based compensation.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

The Company records all highly liquid securitieshathree months or less from date of purchase toimityaas cash
equivalents. These securities consist mainly dffemte of deposits (CDs), money market funds &n8. Treasuries.

Short-term marketable securities consist of CDsadha FDIC insured and single A or better rated igipal bonds with original
maturities of more than three months at the dafpiodhase. The aggregate amount of CDs includethitketable securities at February 26,
2012 and May 29, 2011 was $3.6 million and zerspeetively. The Company classifies all marketaleurities with readily determined
market values as “available for sale” At February 26, 2012, $17.7 million of marketaldewrities had contractual maturities of less thae
year and $3.8 million had maturities of one to fears. Investments in marketable securities aréedaat fair market value. Unrealiz
gains and losses are reported in other compreheltusg as a component of stockholders’ equity. ddst of marketable securities is adjusted
for amortization of premiums and discounts to migturThis amortization is recorded to interestdme. Realized gains and losses on the
of available-forsale securities are also recorded to interest iecama are based on specific identification and wetesignificant for the thre
and nine months ended February 26, 2012 and Fgh2@a011. The cost of securities sold is basethe specific identification method.
Unless needed for non-operating purposes, the Goyngh@es not intend to sell its available for sakeestments prior to maturity.

Financial Instruments

The Company'’s financial instruments are primardynposed of marketable securities, commercial-teaohet payables, grower
advances, and notes receivable, as well as long+tetes receivables and debt instruments. Fot-sfiwn instruments, the historical carrying
amount approximates the fair value of the instrumé&air values for long-term financial instrumentst readily marketable are estimated
based upon discounted future cash flows at prexpitiarket interest rates. Based on these assumptitanagement believes the fair market
values of the Company‘financial instruments are not materially diffdréom their recorded amounts as of February 26226y February 2
2011.

Investments in Non-Public Companies

The Company’s investment in Aesthetic Sciences @attjpn (“Aesthetic Sciences”), a medical devicenpany, is reported as an
investment in non-public company, non-fair valug¢hia accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheetssazatiied at cost after adjustment for
impairment losses. Since there is no readilylalsls market value information, the Company pegatly reviews this investment to
determine if any other than temporary declinesailu® have occurred based on the financial stalgility viability of Aesthetic Sciences.

The Company’s investment in Windset Holdings 201d) La Canadian corporation (“Windset”), is repdrés an investment in non-
public company, fair value, in the accompanying &idated Balance Sheets. The Company accounifs imvestment in Windset under 1
fair value option (see Note 3).




Intangible Assets

The Company’s intangible assets are comprised stbower relationships with a finite estimated uséfelof twelve years and trade
names and goodwill with indefinite lives.

Finite-lived intangible assets are reviewed forgile impairment whenever events or changes iugistances occur that indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset (or assetpynmay not be recoverable. Indefinite lived intidahgyassets are reviewed for impairment at
least annually by comparing the fair value of theet to its carrying value to determine if thers baen an impairment. Goodwill is reviewed
for impairment at least annually by comparing thie ¥alue of the related reporting unit to its garg value to determine if there has been an
impairment.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company accounts for financial assets anditialsi financial instruments and certain othemigeat fair value. The Company
has also elected the fair value option for its steeent in a non-public company (see Note 3).

US Generally Accepted Accounting Principals haatdisthed a three-tier hierarchy for fair value meaments, which prioritizes the
inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1 — observable inputs such as quoted primesiéntical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices in aatiaekets that are observable either directly oir@udly through corroboration with
observable market data.

Level 3 — unobservable inputs in which there ielibr no market data, which would require the Campto develop its own
assumptions.

As of February 26, 2012, the Company held certagets and liabilities that are required to be nreakat fair value on a recurring
basis, including cash equivalents, marketable gigesjrinterest rate swap, liability for contingexmnsideration in connection with the
acquisition of Lifecore and its minority interesvestment in Windset.

The fair value of the Company’s cash equivalentbraarketable securities is determined based omradisle inputs that are readily
available in public markets or can be derived fiaformation available in publicly quoted marketfiefefore, the Company has categorized
its cash equivalents and marketable securitiesegslL1.

The fair value of the Company’s interest rate sigagetermined based on model inputs that can beredd in a liquid market and
key inputs include yield curves and are categoraetlevel 2 inputs. As of February 26, 2012, thenGany recorded to other comprehensive
loss on the consolidated balance sheets an ureddtizs of $202,000, net of taxes of $124,000 asgnting the cumulative change in the
interest rate swap since inception. If the interate swap is terminated or the debt borroweaid pff prior to April 30, 2015, the amount of
unrealized loss or gain included in other comprshenincome (loss) would be reclassified to earsinfhe Company has no intentions of
terminating the interest rate swap or prepayingiiat in the next twelve months. The interest satap liability is included in other non-
current liabilities as of February 26, 2012 and N8y 2011.

The fair value of the Company’s liability for camgjent consideration is based on significant inpotsobserved in the market and
thus represents a Level 3 measurement. The Congmaymined the fair value of the liability for thentingent consideration based on a
probability-weighted discounted cash flow analyasfurther discussed in Note 2.

The Company has elected the fair value option obawting for its investment in Windset. The faifuaof the Company’s
investment in Windset utilizes significant unobsdne inputs in the discounted cash flow modeldugtiag projected cash flows, growth ra
and the discount rate, and is therefore consideeed| 3, as further discussed in Note 3.

The Company believes its valuation methods aregiate and consistent with those of other marketigipants. However,
imprecision in estimating unobservable market isman affect the amount of gain or loss recordea foarticular asset or liability. As a
result, the use of different methodologies or agstions to determine the fair value of certain ficiahinstruments could result in a different
estimate of fair value at the reporting date.

The Company has no other financial assets or iigsilfor which fair value measurement has beermptetb




Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to peaod financial statements to conform to the curpariod presentation.
New Accounting Pronouncements
Intangible-Goodwill and Other

In September 2011, the FASB issued new guidandemitiallow an entity to first assess qualitatifaxtors to determine whether it
necessary to perform the two-step quantitative gdlbompairment test. Under this amendment, antgmtiould not be required to calculate
the fair value of a reporting unit unless the grdittermines, based on a qualitative assessmauit th more likely than not that its fair value
is less than its carrying amount. The amendmeitdies a number of events and circumstances fongiy ¢ consider in conducting the
qualitative assessment. The guidance is effectivéidcal years beginning after December 15, 20ith early adoption permitted. The
Company does not expect that the adoption of thiate will have a material impact on its consobddfinancial statements.

Presentation of Comprehensive Incc

In December 2011, the FASB issued new guidanceari@bves the comparability, consistency, and fpansncy of financial
reporting and increases the prominence of itemarteg in other comprehensive income by eliminatimgoption to present components of
other comprehensive income as part of the stateofaitanges in stockholders' equity. The amendmiaritss standard require that all non-
owner changes in stockholders' equity be presegitedr in a single continuous statement of compisive income or in two separate but
consecutive statements. Under either method, ad@rgs must be displayed for items that are rediaddrom other comprehensive income
("OCI") to net income, in both net income and OTe standard does not change the current optioprémenting components of OCI gross
or net of the effect of income taxes, provided gath tax effects are presented in the statemewhich OCI is presented or disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. Additionally sitandard does not affect the calculation or teypof earnings per share. For public
entities, the amendments in this ASU are effedtivdiscal years, and interim periods within thg®ars, beginning after December 15, 2011
and are to be applied retrospectively, with eadgmion permitted. The Company does not expecatloption of this standard to have a
material impact on its consolidated financial stetats.

Fair Value Measuremel

In May 2011, the FASB issued new guidance whidffisctive for annual reporting periods beginninggaDecember 15, 2011. This
guidance amends certain accounting and disclosgrgrements related to fair value measurementsitidddl disclosure requirements in the
update include: (1) for Level 3 fair value measueats, quantitative information about unobservahjriis used, a description of the valua
processes used by the entity, and a qualitativ@id&on about the sensitivity of the measurementbianges in the unobservable inputs; (2)
for an entity’s use of a nonfinancial asset thalifferent from the asset’s highest and best user@ason for the difference; (3) for financial
instruments not measured at fair value but for Widisclosure of fair value is required, the faitueahierarchy level in which the fair value
measurements were determined; and (4) the diseladuall transfers between Level 1 and Level zheffair value hierarchy. The new
guidance will become effective for the Company @t@mber 1, 2012. We are currently evaluatingrthig guidance and have not yet
determined the impact that adoption will have onfmancial statements.

2. Acquisition of Lifecore Biomedical, la.

On April 30, 2010 (the “Acquisition Date”), the Cpamny acquired all of the common stock of Lifeconeler a Stock Purchase
Agreement (“Purchase Agreement”) in order to expgngroduct offerings and enter into new marketsecore was a privately-held
hyaluronan-based biomaterials company located asKdy Minnesota. Lifecore is principally involviedthe development and manufacture
of products utilizing hyaluronan, a naturally oatog polysaccharide that is widely distributed lie extracellular matrix of connective tissues
in both animals and humans.

Under the Purchase Agreement, the aggregate coasaepayable by the Company to the former Lifecstockholder at closing
consisted of $40.0 million in cash, which includgg6 million held in an escrow account to secuee@ompany’s rights with regards to
indemnification, representations, warranties angenants included in the Purchase Agreement. Ttrewsaccount is in the name of the
seller and Landec’s rights under the escrow agraeoosist solely of its ability to file a claim@gst the escrow Half of the escrow, or
$3.3 million, was released and paid to the formédore shareholder in May 2011. In addition, lobse Lifecore revenues for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2011, the Company hasrdeéd that the earn out (see discussion belos/phan fully earned and therefore
the Company is obligated to pay the former owndrifgfcore $10 million before June 1, 2012.




The acquisition date fair value of the total comsadion transferred was $49.65 million, which cetesi of the following (in
thousands):

Cash $ 40,00(
Contingent consideration 9,65(
Total $ 49,65(

The assets and liabilities of Lifecore were recdrdetheir respective estimated fair values asi@fdate of the acquisition using
generally accepted accounting principles for bussreombinations. The excess of the purchase pvieetbe fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired has been allocated to goodwilld@iticepresents a substantial portion of the asitjon proceeds because of the workforce
in-place at acquisition and because of Lifecomig lhistory and future prospects. Managemenébedi that there is further growth potential
by extending Lifecore's product lines into new ahels.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of Lifecore’s assets acquired and liabiliissumed and related deferred
income taxes, effective April 30, 2010, the date @ompany obtained control of Lifecore (in thousgnd

Cash and cash equivalel $ 31¢
Accounts receivable, n 1,86(
Inventories, ne 9,00¢
Property and equipme 25,52¢
Other tangible asse 1,45¢
Intangible assets 7,90(
Total identifiable assets acquir 46,07:
Accounts payable and other liabiliti (2,989
Long-term debi (4,157
Deferred taxes (3,162)
Total liabilities assumed (10,307)
Net identifiable assets acquil 35,76¢
Goodwill 13,88:
Net assets acquired $ 49,65(

The Company used a combination of the market astiajgproaches to estimate the fair values of tfexbie assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. During the measurement pefiduch is not to exceed one year from the acdaisitlate), the Company is required to
retrospectively adjust the provisional assetsatilities if new information is obtained about feind circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date that, if known, would have rediitethe recognition of those assets or liabiliassof that date. The Company has finalized
the fair values of the acquired assets and assliatglities and closed the measurement period aspoil 30, 2011.

Inventory
A step-up in the value of inventory of $523,000 wexorded in the allocation of the purchase prased on valuation
estimates. During the three and nine months eRdbduary 27, 2011, $119,000 and $413,000, respdygtiof this step-up was charged to

cost of products sold as the inventory was solde @ntire step up was charged to cost of produdtdiaing fiscal years 2010 and 2011 and
no step up remained in inventory as of May 29, 2011
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I ntangible Assets

The Company identified two intangible assets innemtion with the Lifecore acquisition: trade nanaakied at $4.2 million, which
is considered to be an indefinite life asset ardetfore will not be amortized; and customer baseedhat $3.7 million with a twelve year
useful life. The trade name intangible asset wasedbusing the relief from royalty valuation methartd the customer relationship intangible
asset was valued using the multi-period excessregrmethod.

Goodwill

The excess of the consideration transferred oeefain values assigned to the assets acquiredatitities assumed was
$13.9 million. The goodwill can be attributablethe work force in place at the time of the acdigriand to Lifecore’s long history and
future prospects. None of the goodwill is expedtede deductible for income tax purposes. The g will test goodwill for impairment
on an annual basis or more frequently, if deemegssary.

Liability for Contingent Consideration

In addition to the cash consideration paid to tvener shareholder of Lifecore, the Company hasrdeted that it is obligated to p
a $10.0 million earn out payment before June 12201he fair value of the liability for the contiet consideration recognized on the
acquisition date was $10.0 million and $9.8 millias of February 26, 2012 and May 29, 2011, resgadgt and is classified in other accrued
liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

3. Investments in non-public companies

In December 2005, Landec entered into a licensimgeanent with Aesthetic Sciences for the exclusyets to use Landec's
Intelimer0 materials technology for the development of derfillats worldwide. The Company received sharepraferred stock in
exchange for the license with a valuation of $lilion. Aesthetic Sciences sold the rights to ite&tfil™ Injector System on July 16,

2010. Landec evaluated its investment in Aestlgtiences for impairment, utilizing a discountediciow analysis. Based on the terms of
the sale, the Company determined that its investmaa other than temporarily impaired and therefeomrded an impairment charge of $
million during fiscal year 2010. The Company’srgarg value of its investment in Aesthetic Sciente$793,000 as of February 26, 2012.

On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharehase agreement (the “Windset Purchase Agreemeitti’)Windset. Pursuant to
the Windset Purchase Agreement, Apio purchased@Btonvoting senior preferred shares for $15 million @d common shares for $Z
issued by Windset (the “Purchased Shares”). Thamon shares purchased represent a 20.1% interdéhatset. The non-voting senior
preferred shares yield a cash dividend of 7.5% alfyurhe dividend is payable within 90 days of eanniversary of the execution of the
Windset Purchase Agreement. The Windset PurchasseAgent includes a put and call option, which caetercised on the sixth
anniversary of the Windset Purchase Agreement vlge@io can exercise the put to sell its Purche8leares to Windset, or Windset can
exercise the call to purchase the Purchased StraresApio, in either case, at a price equal to 20df the appreciation in the fair market
value of Windset from the date of the Company’sstment through the put and call date, plus thgiral purchase price of the Purchased
Shares. Under the terms of the arrangement with Windset,Gbmpany is entitled to designate one of five men:ibn the Board of Directc
of Windset.

In accordance with accounting guidance, the investrim Windset does not qualify for equity methedaunting as the investment
does not meet the criteria of in-substance comnmoksue to returns through the annual dividenthenon-voting senior preferred shares
that are not available to the common stock hold&ssthe put and call options require the Purch&eates to be put or called in equal
proportions, the Company has deemed that the imeggt in substance, should be treated as a siagleity for purposes of accounting. The
Company has adopted fair value option in the acmogrfor its investment in Windset effective on @hequisition date. The Company
believes that reporting its investment at fair eglwovides its investors with useful informationtbe performance of the Company’s
investment and the anticipated appreciation inevalsiWindset expands its business.

The Company also entered into an exclusive licaggeement with Windset, which was executed in 203®, prior to
contemplation of Apio’s investment in Windset (déate 4).
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The fair value of the Company'’s investment in Wietdsas determined utilizing a discounted cash flo@del based on projections
developed by Windset, and considers the put and@aVversion options. These features impact thatour of the cash flow utilized to derive
the estimated fair value of the investment. The Gamy has concluded that the estimated fair valuts afivestment in Windset approximates
the cash consideration paid for the Purchased Shatbe date of acquisition. Assumptions incluitetthe discounted cash flow model will
be evaluated quarterly based on Windset's actuhpasiected operating results to determine the gham fair value.

For the three and nine months ended February 2&,20e Company recorded $281,000 and $844,00iahethd income,
respectively. The change in the fair market valiithe Company’s investment in Windset for the ¢haead nine months ended February 26,
2012 was determined to be $1.2 million and $2.4ioni| respectively, which is recorded as other meo

4. License Agreements
Monsanto

On December 1, 2006, Landec entered into a five-geaxclusive technology license and polymer syipgreement the Monsant
Agreement”) with Monsanto Company (“Monsanto”) tbe use of Landec’s Intellicogbolymer seed coating technology. Under the terims o
the Monsanto Agreement, Monsanto agreed to payeé@Ad $2.6 million per year. The Monsanto Agreetwesss amended in November
2009. Under the terms of the amended Monsantoeghgeat, Monsanto continued to have an exclusivasied¢o use Landec’s Intellicoat
polymer technology for specific seed treatmentiapfibns. Along with regaining the use of the linteat technology outside of the specific
applications licensed to Monsanto under the ameMitstsanto Agreement, Landec also assumed resplitysibi Landec Ag’s operating
expenses and realizes all the revenues and pit@iitsthe sales of existing and new Intellicoat seealting products.

On September 9, 2011, Monsanto informed the Compaatyit intended to allow the Monsanto Agreemergstpire in accordance
with its terms on December 1, 2011 and therefor@pdanto did not exercise its purchase option. Uponination, Monsanto was obligated
to pay Landec Ag a $4.0 million termination fee afidights to the Intellicoatseed coating technology reverted to Landec. Lanelesived
the termination payment of $4.0 million on NovemBer 2011.

For the nine months ended February 26, 2012, Lareegnized $2.7 million in license revenues frova Monsanto
Agreement. For the three and nine months endedi&gb27, 2011, Landec recognized $1.35 million &#ad5 million, respectively, in
license revenues from the Monsanto Agreement.

Air Products

In March 2006, Landec entered into an exclusivense and research and development agreement wiBréducts and Chemicals,
Inc. (“Air Products”). In accordance with the agmeent, Landec receives 40% of the gross profit géeeé from the sale of products by Air
Products occurring after April 1, 2007, that incangte Landec’s Intelimer materials.

Chiquita

In September 2007, the Company amended its licgrasid supply agreement with Chiquita Brands Intéonal, Inc.
(“Chiquita™). Under the terms of the amendmehg license for bananas was expanded to includ¢i@uli exclusive fields using Landec’s
BreatheWay® packaging technology, and a new exausiense was added for the sale and marketimy@fados and mangos using
Landec’s BreatheWay packaging technology. Theeageat with Chiquita, which Chiquita has electedetoew for another five years
through December 2016, requires Chiquita to payiahgross profit minimums to Landec in order foiidtlita to maintain its exclusive
license for bananas, avocados and mangos. Uneléerins of the agreement, Chiquita must notify leendefore Decembersiof each year
whether it is going to maintain its exclusive liserfor the following calendar year and thus agogeaty the minimums for that year. Landec
was notified by Chiquita in November 2011 that Qiitigt had chosen to maintain its exclusive licemseflendar year 2012 and thus agre:
that time to pay the minimum gross profit for calanyear 2012.
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Windset

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieesgreement with Windset for Windset to utilize dag's proprietary breathable
packaging to extend the shelf life of greenhoussvgrcucumbers, peppers and tomatoes (“ExclusivduRte”). In accordance with the
agreement, Apio received and recorded a one-tinfreniresearch and development fee of $100,000nalhdeceive license fees equal to 3%
of net revenue of the Exclusive Products utilizihg proprietary breathable packaging technologth wi without the BreatheWay®
trademark. The ongoing license fees are subjeamiboial minimums of $150,000 for each of the thypes of exclusive product as each is
added to the agreement. As of February 26, 201 pooduct has been added to the agreement. itioagithe first year minimum payment
period had an original payment date of June 20higiwhas been deferred until April 2012 due to @iela obtaining required packaging
materials.

5. Stock-Based Compensation

In the three and nine months ended February 26,26& Company recognized stock-based compensatjpense of $429,000 and
$1,314,000, respectively, which included $192,000 $587,000 for restricted stock unit awards ar@lir$#0 and $727,000 for stock option
grants, respectively. In the three and nine moettted February 27, 2011, the Company recognipet-flased compensation expense of
$436,000 and $1,398,000, respectively, which inetL#i197,000 and $651,000 for restricted stockawérds and $239,000 and $747,000 for
stock option grants, respectively.

The following table summarizes the stock-based eoraation by income statement line item:

Three Months Three Months Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
February 26, February 27, February 26, February 27,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Research and developm: $ 136,00( $ 106,00 $ 390,000 $ 334,00(
Sales, general and administrative $ 293,000 $ 330,000 $ 924,000 $ 1,064,00!
Total stoc-based compensatic $ 429,000 $ 436,000 $ 1,314,000 $ 1,398,001

As of February 26, 2012, there was $1.8 millionatél unrecognized compensation expense relatedwested equity compensation
awards granted under the Landec equity plans.| €gfense is expected to be recognized over thghiex-average period of 1.3 years for
stock options and 1.2 years for restricted stodkawards.

6. Diluted Net Income Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation dfitéd net income per share (in thousands, excepsipare amounts):

Three Months Three Months Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
February 26, February 27, February 26, February 27,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Numerator:
Net income applicable to Comm
Stockholder: $ 4,76 $ 2,29¢ $ 9917 $ 6,657
Denominator
Weighted average shares for basic net
income per shar 25,53¢ 26,37" 25,94« 26,39¢
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options and restricted stock un 28 25¢ 261 25k
Weighted average shares for diluted ne
income per shar 25,82¢ 26,63 26,20: 26,65«
Diluted net income per sha $ 0.1t $ 0.0¢ $ 03¢t $ 0.2t
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For the three months ended February 26, 2012 amdi&ey 27, 2011, the computation of the dilutedinebme per share excludes
the impact of options to purchase 1.9 million shamad 1.7 million shares of Common Stock, respeltias such impacts would be
antidilutive for these periods.

For the nine months ended February 26, 2012 andi&sb27, 2011, the computation of the dilutedinebme per share excludes
impact of options to purchase 2.0 million shares &8 million shares of Common Stock, respectivas/such impacts would be antidilutive
for these periods.

7. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the three anmonths ended February 26, 2012 was $2.9 mili@h$6.1 million,
respectively. The effective tax rate for both theee and nine months ended February 26, 2012 wasc88&pared to 37% for the same
periods in fiscal year 2011. The effective tax fatethe three and nine months ended February @&, Biffers from the statutory federal
income tax rate of 35% as a result of several factocluding state taxes, non-deductible stocleba®mmpensation expense, tax exempt
interest and the benefit of federal and state rekeand development credits.

As of May 29, 2011, the Company had unrecognizedbémefits of approximately $760,000. Includedhia balance of
unrecognized tax benefits as of May 29, 2011 is@pmately $601,000 of tax benefits that, if recazgul, would result in an adjustment to
Companys effective tax rate. The Company expects its wgeized tax benefits to change by $240,000 withenrtext twelve months relat
to the expiration of tax attributes.

In accordance with accounting guidarice,Company has decided to classify interest amalpies related to uncertain tax positior
a component of its provision for income taxes. Twmpany has accrued an insignificant amount afr@st and penalties relating to
income tax on the unrecognized tax benefits asbfiary 26, 2012 and May 29, 2011.

Due to tax attribute carry forwards, the Compansuigject to examination for tax years 1996 forwardJ.S. tax purposes. The
Company is also subject to examination in varidategurisdictions for tax years 1998 forward, nofievhich are individually significant.

8. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (finsfirst-out method) or market and consisted &f fbllowing (in thousands):

February 26, May 29,
2012 2011
Finished good $ 8,82: $ 10,26
Raw material 8,51¢ 7,99¢
Work in progress 2,59( 1,901
Total $ 19,93 $ 20,16

9. Debt

On April 30, 2010, Lifecore entered into a $20limil Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank N.AWeElls Fargo”) with a five-
year term that provides for equal monthly principayments plus interest. All of Lifec(s assets have been pledged to secure the debt
incurred pursuant to the Credit Agreement. Landdlae guarantor of the debt.

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued variable ratiistrial revenue bonds (“IRB”). These bonds vemsumed by Landec in the
acquisition of Lifecore (see Note 2). The bondsaullateralized by a bank letter of credit securgé first mortgage on the Company’s
facility in Chaska, Minnesota. In addition, therffpany pays an annual remarketing fee equal tb®l&nd an annual letter of credit fee of
0.50% on the outstanding principal balance.
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The Credit Agreement and the IRB contain certastrigtive covenants, which require Lifecore to meatain financial tests,
including minimum levels of net income, minimum ckiratio, minimum fixed coverage ratio and maximcapital expenditures.

Long-term debt consists of the following (in thonds):
February 26, May 29,
2012 2011

Credit agreement with Wells Fargo; due in monttdyments of

$333,333 through April 30, 2015 with interest pdgabonthly

at Libor plus 2% per annum (2.375% at both Febr2&ry2012

and May 29, 2011 $ 13,000 $ 16,00(
Industrial revenue bond issued by Lifecore; duarinual payments

through 2020 with interest at a variable rate seghkdy by the

bond remarketing agent (0.37% and 0.40% at Feb2&ry

2012 and May 29, 2011, respectively) 3,50( 3,83(
Total 16,50( 19,83(
Less current portion (4,330 (4,330
Long-term portion $ 12,17C $ 15,50(

The maturities on the IRB are held in a sinkingdf@ecount, recorded in Prepaid expenses and alihemnt assets in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and at@pleach year on September 1.

10. Derivative Financial Instruments

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yasgrest rate swap agreement under the Companydit @greement, which
expires on April 30, 2015. The interest rate swag designated as a cash flow hedge of futureaistt@ayments and has a notional amou
$20 million. As a result of the interest rate svamsaction, the Company fixed for a five-year péihe interest rate at 4.24%, subject to
market based interest rate risk on $20 million@frbwings under its Credit Agreement. The Companpligations under the interest rate
swap transaction are guaranteed and secured sauitie basis as is its obligations under the Creglieément. As of February 26, 2012, the
Company recorded to Other Comprehensive Loss oG d¢imsolidated Balance Sheets an unrealized 10820#,000, net of taxes of $124,0i
as a result of the interest rate swap. If ther@serate swap is terminated prior to April 30, 20the amount of unrealized loss or gain
included in Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) wa@declassified to earnings. The Company hastentions of terminating the interest
rate swap in the next twelve months. The interast swap liability is included in other non-curréabilities in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of February 26, 20d May 29, 2011.

11. Related Party

The Company provides cooling and distribution sagsito both a farm and Beachside Produce LLC ("Bside"), a commodity
produce distributor, in which the Chairman of Ap@s a farming and ownership interest, respectivéuring the three and nine months
ended February 26, 2012, the Company recognizezhtes of $0.7 million and $2.8 million, respectethich have been included in
product sales and in service revenues in the acaoyipy Consolidated Statements of Income, fronmstie of products and providing cool
services to these parties. During the three anel mionths ended February 27, 2011, the Compangme revenues of $0.7 million and
$3.1 million, respectively, which have been incldde product sales and in service revenues in¢herapanying Consolidated Statements of
Income, from the sale of products and providingliogoservices to these parties. The related ratdé/balances of $378,000 and $453,000
are included in accounts receivable in the accoyipgrConsolidated Balance Sheets as of Februar@& and May 29, 2011, respective

Additionally, unrelated to the revenue transactiabsve, the Company purchases produce from theifawhich the Chairman of
Apio has an ownership interest, Beachside, and ¥¢ingsee Note 3) for sale to third parties. Duthgthree and nine months ended
February 26, 2012, the Company recognized costaafyet sales of $0.9 million and $3.8 million, respively, which have been included in
product sales and in service revenues in the acaoyipg Consolidated Statements of Income, fronstie of products purchased from these
parties. During the three and nine months endéduaey 27, 2011, the Company recognized cost adywbsales of $227,000 and $2.7
million, respectively, which have been includegmduct sales and in service revenues in the acaoyipg Consolidated Statements of
Income, from the sale of products purchased fragsdlparties. The related accounts payable of $20a0d $300,000 are included in
accounts payable, related party in the accomparorngolidated Balance Sheets as of February 2@, 206d May 29, 2011, respectively.
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All related party transactions are monitored qubrtiey the Company and approved by the Audit Corteribf the Board of
Directors.

12. Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net incanteother comprehensive income including unrealgagds and losses on the
interest rate swap with Wells Fargo. Accumulatdgeocomprehensive loss is reported as a comparfiestdckholders’ equity. At February
26, 2012, the net comprehensive loss from the lineebloss on the interest rate swap, net of inctames, was $202,000. At February 27,
2011, the net comprehensive loss from the unrahlizss on the interest rate swap, net of incomestawas $212,000.

13. Stockholders’ Equity

During the three months ended February 26, 20E2Ctimpany granted no options to purchase shammsuhon stock and no
restricted stock unit awards. During the nine rhergnded February 26, 2012, the Company grantéoshsgb purchase 7,500 shares of
common stock and 2,500 of restricted stock unitreaia

As of February 26, 2012 the Company has resen&thBlion shares of Common Stock for future issweaoader its current and
former equity plans.

On July 14, 2010, the Company announced that tleedBaf Directors of the Company had approved thebéishment of a stock
repurchase plan which allows for the repurchaagdd $10 million of the Company’s Common Stockhe Company may repurchase its
common stock from time to time in open market pasgs or in privately negotiated transactions. tifheg and actual number of shares
repurchased is at the discretion of managemeiiteo€ompany and will depend on a variety of factorsduding stock price, corporate and
regulatory requirements, market conditions, thathet attractiveness of other capital deploymemtoofunities and other corporate
priorities. The stock repurchase program doeohligate Landec to acquire any amount of its comstook and the program may be
modified, suspended or terminated at any timeeaQtbmpany's discretion without prior notice. Dgrthe three months ended February 26,
2012, the Company purchased on the open marke888Hares of its Common Stock for $201,000. Dutiiregnine months ended February
26, 2012, the Company purchased on the open matke?244 shares of its Common Stock for $5.0 million

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdergquity
(in thousands, except share amounts)

February 26,
2012

Common Stock Share:
Balance at May 29, 201 26,405,79
Stock options exercised, net of shares tend 55,467
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares tesut —
Common stock repurchased on the open market (917,244)
Balance at February 26, 2012 25,544,02
Common Stock
Balance at May 29, 201 $ 27
Common stock repurchased on the open market (1)
Balance at February 26, 2012 $ 26
Additional Paid-in Capital
Balance at May 29, 201 $ 119,16¢
Stock options exercised, net of shares tend 91
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares tesat —
Taxes paid by Company for RSUs ves (38
Stocl-based compensation expel 1,314
Tax-benefit from stock based compensation exp: 5,511
Common stock repurchased on the open market (5,006
Balance at February 26, 2012 $ 121,04:
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Balance at May 29, 201 $ (267)
Change in other comprehensive loss 65
Balance at February 26, 2012 $ (202)
Retained Earnings

Balance at May 29, 201 $ 17,12¢
Net income 9,917
Balance at February 26, 2012 $ 27,04%
Non controlling Interest

Balance at May 29, 201 $ 1,671
Non controlling interest in net incon 28¢
Distributions to non controlling interest (257)
Balance at February 26, 2012 $ 1,702

14. Business Segment Reporting

The Company manages its business operations thfouglstrategic business units. Based upon thenmdtion reported to the chief
operating decision maker, who is the Chief Exeau@fficer, the Company has the following reporta#gments : the Food Products
Technology segment, the Food Export segment, ttadudynan-based Biomaterials segment and the Teaspyndlicensing segment.

The Food Products Technology segment markets acla gpecialty packaged whole and fresh-cut vegesahht incorporate the
BreatheWay specialty packaging for the retail grpcelub store and food services industry. In &ddj the Food Products Technology
segment sells BreatheWay packaging to partnensdiofvegetable products. The Food Export segmartisis of revenues generated from
the purchase and sale of primarily whole commoaifiitit and vegetable products to Asia and domesdticalhe HA-based Biomaterials
segment sells products utilizing hyaluronan, a radiioccurring polysaccharide that is widely distited in the extracellular matrix of
connective tissues in both animals and humans é&atical use primarily in the Ophthalmic, Orthopedial Veterinary markets. The
Technology Licensing segment licenses Landec’sedielntellicoat seed coatings to the farming itiduand licenses the Company’s
Intelimer polymers for personal care products atheindustrial products. Corporate includes caapgeneral and administrative expenses,
non Food Products Technology and non HA-based Bieriads interest income and Company-wide incomeetgpenses. All of the assets of
the Company are located within the United Statesmérica. The Company'’s international sales waré#dows (in millions):

Three Months Ende Nine Months Ende:
February 26 February 27 February 26 February 27
2012 2011 2012 2011
Taiwan $ 2C $ 1¢ $ 20¢ % 18.7
Indonesiz $ 54 % 6.C $ 192 $ 14.¢
Canads $ 52 $ 49 $ 152 $ 14.C
Belgium $ 6C $ 81 $ 141 % 15.¢
Japar $ 1€ $ 12 % 7€ % 6.2
Il Other Countries $ 46 $ 5C $ 148 $ 13.1




Operations by segment consisted of the followingtlbusands):

Food
Products HA-based Technology

Three Months Ended February 26, 2 Technology Food Expor Biomaterials Licensing Corporate TOTAL
Net sales $ 56,45¢ $ 12,38¢ % 11,06¢ $ 154 $ — 80,06«
International sale $ 517¢ $ 12,15¢ $ 7,60C $ — $ — 24,93¢
Gross profit $ 547¢  $ 917 $ 6,62: $ 154 $ — 3 13,172
Net income (loss $ 5851 $ 33¢ % 397C $ (902) $ (4,497 $ 4,76t
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 76z $ 2 3 572 % 46 $ — 3 1,382
Dividend income $ 281 % — $ — $ — 3 —  $ 281
Interest incom $ 12 % — 3 43 3% — 3 8 $ 63
Interest expens $ — — 15 $ — — 153
Income tax expens $ — 3 — 3 — $ — 3 2,92 $ 2,92(
Three Months Ended February 27, 2

Net sales $ 47,70¢ $ 12,17¢ % 12,157 $ 1,47C $ — $ 73,50¢
International sale $ 4,758 $ 11,95¢ $ 10,36: $ — $ — $ 27,07¢
Gross profit $ 3,27 $ 93¢ $ 6,79¢ $ 1,47C % — 12,47¢
Net income (loss $ 421 3 382 $ 4,19t $ 52t $ (3,22¢) $ 2,29¢
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 77¢  $ 2 $ 48¢ 3 41 $ — 1,30¢
Dividend income $ 47 $ — $ — $ — $ — 3 47
Interest incom $ 53 $ — 3% 42 % — 3% 25 $ 12C
Interest expens $ — 3 — 3 19€ $ — 3 — 3 19¢
Income tax expens $ — 3 — 3 — $ — 3 1,35 $ 1,35(
Nine Months Ended February 26, 2(

Net sales $ 146,51. $ 57,97 $ 27,42: $ 3,02¢ % — $ 234,93!
International sale $ 14,89 $ 57,61¢ $ 19,25 $ — $ — $ 91,75¢
Gross profit $ 16,06¢ $ 3,73 % 14,60: $ 3,02¢ % — $ 37,43:
Net income (loss $ 11,84¢ $ 1,72¢  $ 727C $ (169 $ (10,769 $ 9,911
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 231: % 6 $ 1,658 $ 137 % — 3 4,111
Dividend income $ 844 $ — 3 — $ — $ — 3 844
Interest incomt $ 42 $ — $ 146 $ — $ 29 % 21¢
Interest expens $ — 3 — 3 49z % — 3 — 3 497
Income tax expens $ — 3 — 3 — $ — 3 6,07¢ $ 6,07¢

Food
Products HA-based Technology

Nine Months Ended February 27, 2C Technology  Food Export  Biomaterials Licensing Corporate TOTAL
Net sales $ 128,91: $ 48,29t $ 26,96 $ 445¢ $ — $ 208,63(
International sale $ 13,52¢ $ 47.97F $ 21,12: $ — $ — $ 82,62:
Gross profi $ 13,38¢ $ 3,09¢ $ 15,20« $ 4,45¢ % — 3 36,15(
Net income (loss $ 4871 $ 1,366 $ 7,73: % 1,641 $ (8,960 $ 6,657
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 2331 $ 6 $ 1,451 $ 11€ $ — 3 3,91(
Dividend income $ 47 % — — $ — $ — 47
Interest incomt $ 127 $ — $ 104 $ — $ 113 $ 344
Interest expens $ 2 $ — 3 62¢ $ — 3 — 3 631
Income tax expens $ — 3 — 3 — $ — 3 3911 $ 3,911

During the nine months ended February 26, 2012 aduary 27, 2011, sales to the Company’s topdustomers accounted for
44% and 45%, respectively, of revenues. The Cogipdop customer from the Food Products Technokggment accounted for 17% and
16% for the nine months ended February 26, 201Zabduary 27, 2011, respectively. The Company esplat, for the foreseeable future,
a limited number of customers may continue to antéar a significant portion of its net revenues.
15. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated and disclosed subseepmmts through the date of the issuance of thadiahstatements.
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Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis ofifancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the unaudited consolidated financial stegats and accompanying notes
included in Part I-Item 1 of this Form 10-Q and ¢helited consolidated financial statements andrapeaying notes and Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebsults of Operations included in Landec’s Annugp&t on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended May 29, 201

Except for the historical information containeddiar the matters discussed in this report are faii@oking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchancfeof1934. These forward-looking statements imgalertain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materiallynfrthose in the forward-looking statements. Po#énigks and uncertainties include, without
limitation, those mentioned in this Form 10-Q andse mentioned in Landec’s Annual Report on ForAKX6r the fiscal year ended May :
2011. Landec undertakes no obligation to updatevase any forward-looking statements in ordereftect events or circumstances that may
arise after the date of this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

There have been no material changes to the Congparitycal accounting policies which are includeuti alescribed in the Form 10-
for the fiscal year ended May 29, 2011 filed while Securities and Exchange Commission on AuguxdBl.

The Company

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landacthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aidpolymer products for
food and agricultural products, medical devices lasahsed partner applications that incorporatedea’s patented polymer
technologies. The Company has two proprietarymelytechnology platforms: 1) Intelimer® polymeasd 2) Hyaluronan (“HA”")
biopolymers. The Company’s polymer technologié&ma@with its customer relationships and trade raraee the foundation, and a key
differentiating advantage upon which Landec ha# bimibusiness.

Landec has four core businesses — Fomduts Technology, Food Export, HA-based Biomaterand Technology Licensing, each of
which is described below.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Apio, operates our ¢c&woducts Technology business, combining Landaoprietary food
packaging technology with the capabilities of @éanational food supplier and value-added producegssor. In Apio’s value-added
operations, produce is processed by trimming, wastmixing, and packaging into bags and traysiti@airporate Landec’s Breathe W&y
membrane technology. The BreatheWay membraneaseseshelf life and reduces shrink (waste) foileessand, for certain products,
eliminates the need for ice during the distributbgule and helps to ensure that consumers recedgh produce by the time the product m:
its way through the supply chain. Apio also licemshe BreatheWay technology to ChiquBaands International, Inc. (“Chiquita”) for
packaging and distribution of bananas and avocaddso Windset Farms for packaging of greenhouseigicucumbers, peppers and
tomatoes.

Apio also operates the Food Export bessrthrough its Cal Ex Trading Company (“Cal-ExThe Export business purchases and sells
whole fruit and vegetable products to predominaAsian markets.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Lifecorgepates our HA-based Biomaterials business andrisipally involved in the development
and manufacture of products utilizing hyaluronanaturally occurring polysaccharide that is widdigtributed in the extracellular matrix of
connective tissues in both animals and humansechbik’s products are primarily sold to three mddiegments: (1) Ophthalmic, (2)
Orthopedic and (3) Veterinary. Lifecore also sigghyaluronan to customers pursuing other medigplications, such as aesthetic surgery,
medical device coatings, tissue engineering andnpieeuticals. Lifecore leverages its fermentatimtess to manufacture premium,
pharmaceutical-grade hyaluronan, and its asefitiogficapabilities to deliver HA finished goodsite customers. Lifecore also manufactures
and sells its own HA-based finished goods. Lifedsrknown in the medical segments as a premiurpleumf HA. Its name recognition
allows Lifecore to acquire new customers and sal products with only a small marketing and salgsability.
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Landec’s Technology Licensing business developprietary polymer technologies and applies themvide range of applications
including seed coatings and treatments, temperatdieators, controlled release systems, drug defivpressure sensitive adhesives and
personal care products. These applications arenewnialized through partnerships with third partiesulting in licensing and royalty
revenues. For example, Air Products and Chemitrads (“Air Products”) has an exclusive licenseotar Intelimer polymers for personal care
products and Nitta Corporation (“Nitta”) licensearidec’s proprietary pressure sensitive adhesivassin the manufacture of electronic
components by their customers.

Landec was incorporated on October 31, 1986. Wepbeted our initial public offering in 1996 and dbommon Stock is listed on
The NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbdifC.” Our principal executive offices are locatedB&03 Haven Avenue, Menlo
Park, California 94025 and our telephone numb&3¢) 306-1650.

Description of Core Business

Landec participates in four core business segmdfisd Products Technology, Food Export, Hyalurebased Biomaterials and
Technology Licensing.

| Landec Corporation |

T ==

‘ Proprietary Polvmer Science Technology ‘

: . | |

Food Products | ‘ Food Export ‘

HA-based Biomatenals | | Technolo av Licensing

Technology

Food Products Technology Business

The Company began marketing its proprietary Intetiibased BreatheWay® membranes in 1996 for useifrésh-cut produce
packaging market, historically one of the fastest\gng segments in the produce industry. Landpoiprietary BreatheWaypackaging
technology when combined with fresh-cut or wholeduce results in packaged produce with increasefd Iffie and reduced shrink (waste)
without the need for ice during the distributiorcley The resulting products are referred to asuesadded” products. During the fiscal year
ended May 29, 2011, Apio shipped nearly sixteetionilcartons of produce to leading supermarketilezta wholesalers, foodservice
suppliers and club stores throughout the UniteteStand internationally, primarily in Canada.

There are four major distinguishing characteristitépio that provide competitive advantages in Boed Products Technology
market:

Value-Added Supplier: Apio has structured its business as a marketeselhel of fresh-cut and whole value-added produtes
focused on selling products under its Eat Smardend other brands for its fresh-cut and wholeesgldded products. As retail
grocery and club store chains consolidate, Apiwal positioned as a single source of a broad rafigeoducts.

Reduced Farming Risks: Apio reduces its farming risk by not taking owstdp of farmland, and instead, contracts with gnaver
produce and enters into joint ventures with growerproduce. The year-round sourcing of prodsce key component to the fresh-
cut and whole value-added processing business.

Lower Cost Structure: Apio has strategically invested in the rapidly gimogvfresh-cut and whole value-added business. '4{i86,000
square foot value-added processing plant is augnaith state-of-the-art vegetable processing eqai. Virtually all of Apio’s
value-added products utilize Apio’s proprietary &8teeWay packagingtechnology. Apio’s primary strategy is to operate large
central processing facility in one of Californidésgest, lowest cost growing regions, the SantadNalley, and use packaging
technology that allows for the nationwide delivefyfresh produce products.
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Expanded Product Line Using TechnologyApio, through the use of its BreatheWay packagiteghnology, is introducing new value-
added products each year. These new productmgferange from various sizes of fresh-cut baggedumts, to vegetable trays, to
whole produce, to vegetable salads and snack pdalksng the last twelve months, Apio has introdi®enew products.

Apio established its Apio Packaging division in 8G0 advance the sales of BreatheWay packagingodotyy for shelflife sensitive
vegetables and fruit. The Company’s specialty paicigafor case liner products extends the shelfdifeertain produce commodities up to
50%. This shelf life extension can enable thezatilon of alternative distribution strategies tmrgefficiencies or reach new markets while
maintaining product quality to the end customer.

Apio Packaging'’s first program has concentratedamanas and was formally consummated when Apigezhteto an agreement to
supply Chiquita with its proprietary banana packggechnology. This global agreement applies ¢arifhening, conservation and shelf-life
extension of bananas for most applications on afusive basis and for other applications on a narlusive basis. In addition, Apio
provides Chiquita with ongoing research and devaleqmt and process technology support for the Br&d#lyemembranes and bags, and
technical service support throughout the custorhaircin order to assist in the development and etaakceptance of the technology.

Chiquita provides marketing, distribution and riesailes support for Chiquita® bananas sold worléwidBreatheWay
packaging. To maintain the exclusive license, Gitdggmust meet quarterly minimum purchase threshofdBreatheWay banana packages.

In fiscal year 2008, the Company expanded the tige BreatheWay technology to include avocadosmadgos under an expanded
licensing agreement with Chiquita. Commercial saleavocados packaged in Landec’s BreatheWay gaukanto the food service industry
began late in fiscal year 2008 and commercialIrstdés began in fiscal 2010.

In June 2008, Apio entered into a collaboratioreagrent with Seminis Vegetable Seeds, Inc., a wimllged subsidiary of
Monsanto, to develop novel broccoli and cauliflowesducts for the exclusive sale by Apio in the tRgkmerican market. These novel
products will be packaged in Landec’s proprietargddheWay packaging and will be sold to retail grgahains, club stores and the food
service industry. Field trials for the initial ¢gat varieties began in the Fall of 2008. Consut@srmarketing began in April 2011.

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieemgreement with Windset for Windset to utilize dao’s proprietary breathable
packaging to extend the shelf life of greenhoussvgrcucumbers, peppers and tomatoes.

On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharehase agreement (the “Purchase Agreemevitt) Windset Holdings 2010 Ltd.,
Canadian corporation (“Windset”). Pursuant to thhecRase Agreement, Apio purchased 150,000 senédemed shares for $15 million and
201 common shares for $201 (the “Purchased SharEs8)Company’s common shares represent a 20.Eregitin Windset. The nareting
senior preferred shares yield a cash dividend5$#f7/annually. The dividend is payable within 90 dafsach anniversary of the execution of
the Purchase Agreement. The Purchase Agreemeuntdesch put and call option, which can be exeraisethe sixth anniversary of the
Purchase Agreement whereby Apio can exercise thopaell its Purchased Shares to Windset, or WWhdan exercise the call to purchase
the Purchased Shares from Apio, in either case patte equal to 20.1% of the appreciation in #ierharket value of Windset from the date
of the Company’s investment through the put/calédplus the purchase price of the Purchased Shdsader the terms of the arrangement
with Windset, the Company is entitled to desigraate of five members on the Board of Directors ohugiet.

Food Export Business
Food Export revenues consist of revenues genefiatadthe purchase and sale of primarily whole corditydruit and vegetable

products to Asia through Apio’s export company,-Eal The Food Export business is a buy/sell bissiribat realizes a commission-based
margin on average in the 5-8% range.
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Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials Business
Our HA-based Biomaterials business, operated thrawg Lifecore subsidiary, was acquired by Landedpril 30, 2010.

Lifecore uses its fermentation process and asépticulation and filling expertise to be a leadethie development of hyaluronan-
based products for multiple applications and te@talvantage of non-hyaluronan device and drug eyppities which leverage its expertise in
manufacturing and aseptic syringe filling capaieitit Elements of Lifecore’s strategy include tbkofving:

° Establish strategic relationships with market leede Lifecore develops applications for products witirtners who have
strong marketing, sales and distribution capabdlito end-user markets. Through its strong rejpatand history of providing premium HA
products, Lifecore has been able to establish teng-relationships with the market leading compssigch as Alcon, Inc. (Alcon) and Abk
Medical Optics (Abbott) in ophthalmology, and Mukiskeletal Transplant Foundation (MTF) and Novaiis in orthopedics.

° Expand medical applications for hyaluronarbue to the growing knowledge of the unique cbeastics of hyaluronan
and the role it plays in normal physiology, Lifeeaontinues to identify and pursue further usehy@luronan in other medical applications,
such as wound care, aesthetic surgery, adhesigemiren, drug delivery, device coatings and phaeuécals. Further applications may
involve expanding process development activity anddditional licensing of technology.

° License hyaluronan technology from third partiel 2007, Lifecore entered into a world-wide exchgslicense and
development agreement with The Cleveland Clinicrieiation to develop and commercialize Corgel ™ Birbgel using patented
hyaluronan-based cross-linking technology, thatlmansed for products in aesthetics, orthopedjisth@lmology and other medical
fields. Lifecore has not yet identified any potehtommercial products for this technology; howeliéecore continues to investigate
potential applications.

° Utilize manufacturing infrastructure to pursue catt aseptic filling and fermentation opportunitiésfecore will continue
to evaluate providing contract services for oppuities that are suited for the capital and facilityestment related to aseptic filling
equipment, fermentation and purification.

° Maintain flexibility in product development and piyprelationships. Lifecore’s vertically integrated development and
manufacturing capabilities allow it to establishagiety of relationships with global corporate parts. Lifecore’s role in these relationships
extends from supplying hyaluronan raw materialm#mufacturing of aseptically-packaged, finishedilst@roducts to developing and
manufacturing its own proprietary products.

Technology Licensing Businesses
The Technology and Market Opportunity: Intellicoat Seed Coatings

Following the sale of Fielder's Choice Direct (“FQPLandec Ag’s strategy has been to further depeor patented, functional
polymer coating technology for sale and/or licegdimthe seed industry. Landec Ag is currentlyufmd on commercializing products for the
soybean and seed corn market and plans to brobhde@adhnology to other seed crop applications.

Landec's Intellicoat seed coating applicationsdasgned to control seed germination timing, inseeerop yields, reduce risks and
extend crop-planting windows. These coatings areeotly available on male inbred corn used for samediuction. In fiscal year 2000,
Landec Ag launched Pollinator Pl@scoatings, which is a coating application used lBdssompanies as a method for spreading pollinadi
increase yields and reduce risk in the productiomybrid seed corn. In 2011, Pollinator Plus wasdiby eight seed companies on
approximately 20% of the seed corn production aicréise U.S.

Landec Ag is also working on developing seed treatrapplications. The concept of seed treatmesritsplace an insecticide or
fungicide directly onto the seed surface in ordgprbtect the seed and the seedling as it emetgesdecs Intellicoat seed coating technolc
could be an integral and proprietary part of buidga significant position in seed treatments woittby using Landec’s seed coatings as a
“carrier” of insecticides/fungicides which can bepknsed at the appropriate time based on timeilotesnperature. During the past year, we
focused on validating the use of Landec’s coatandphology for seed treatment applications.
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The Technology and Market Opportunity: Intelimer Polymer Applications

We think our technology has commercial potentia imide range of industrial, consumer and medipplieations beyond those
identified in our other segments. For example,amre patented technology, Intelimer materials, lmanised to trigger release of catalysts,
insecticides or fragrances just by changing theperature of the Intelimer materials or to activadbesives through controlled temperature
change. In order to exploit these opportunities have, and will continue to enter into licensing aollaborative corporate agreements for
product development and/or distribution in cerfiééfds. However, given the infrequency and unpetadiility of when the Company may
enter into any such licensing and research andaewent arrangements, the Company is unable téodisdts financial expectations in
advance of entering into such arrangements.

Industrial Materials and Adhesivt

Landec’s industrial product development strategyfes on coatings, catalysts, resins, additivesadhdsives in the polymer
materials market. During the product developméades, the Company identifies corporate partnessipport the ongoing development and
testing of these products, with the ultimate gddloensing the applications at the appropriateetim

Intelimer Latent Catalyst Polymer Syste

Landec has developed latent catalysts useful ienetihg pot-life, extending shelf life, reducing weaand improving thermoset cure
methods. Some of these latent catalysts are dlyrisging distributed by Akzo-Nobel Chemicals Bt¥rough our licensing agreement with
Air Products. The rights to develop and sell Larisiéatent catalysts and personal care technolagés licensed to Air Products in March
2006.

Personal Care and Cosmetic Applicatic

Landec’s personal care and cosmetic applicationsesly is focused on supplying Intelimer materialindustry leaders for use in
lotions and creams, as well as color cosmeticstitiks and hair care. The Company's partner, Ade&cts, is currently shipping products to
L'Oreal, Mentholatum and other companies for usleiions and creams. The rights to develop and.seldec’s polymers for personal care
products were licensed to Air Products in March@@ng with the latent catalyst rights. The Compa Intelimer polymers are currently in
over 50 personal care products worldwide.

Intelimer Drug Delivery Polymet
Landec is developing both biodegradable and lniodegradable polymers for use in drug deliveryliapfions targeting the use of its hig

crystalline polymers and the tunable physical priige to minimize or eliminate burst, extend dretgase profiles and deliver novel valui
properties to the pharma industry.
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Results of Operations

Revenuegin thousands):

Three Three
months months Ninemonths  Nine months
ended ended ended ended
2/26/12 2/27/11 Change 2/26/12 2/27/11 Change
Apio Value Added $ 55,88: $ 47,22¢ 18% $ 145,01: $ 127,05( 14%
Apio Packaging 574 47¢ 20% 1,501 1,861 (19%)
Food Technology 56,45¢ 47,70¢ 18% 146,51 128,91 14%
Apio Export 12,38¢ 12,17¢ 2% 57,97: 48,29¢ 20%
Total Apio 68,84 59,88: 15% 204,48 177,20 15%
HA 11,06¢ 12,157 (9%) 27,42: 26,96¢ 2%
Tech. Licensing 154 1,47( (90%) 3,02¢ 4,45¢ (32%)
Total Revenues $ 80,06¢ $ 73,50¢ 9% $ 234,93 % 208,63( 13%

Apio Value Added

Apio’s value-added revenues consist of revenuesrgégd from the sale of specialty packaged freslaed whole value-added
processed vegetable products that are washed akdgeal in our proprietary packaging and sold udgeo’s Eat Smart brand and various
private labels. In addition, value-added reverineide the revenues generated from Apio Coolirig), & vegetable cooling operation in
which Apio is the general partner with a 60% owhargosition.

The increase in Apio’s value-added revenues foththee and nine months ended February 26, 2012 ax@do the same periods of
last year was primarily due to a 24% and 19% irsgeeespectively, in unit volume sales to existingtomers resulting primarily from
expanded product offerings, gaining additionalriistion locations, and growth in the fresh-cut &&ple category. The revenues generated
from these volume increases during the three amelmionths ended February 26, 2012 were partiaiebby a product mix change to lower
priced products from higher priced products.

Apio Packaging

Apio packaging revenues consist of Apio’s packadeupnology business using its BreatheWay membeaieology. The first
commercial application included in Apio packagisgur banana packaging technology.

The increase in Apio packaging revenues for theetinonths ended February 26, 2012 compared t@the period last year was
primarily due to banana membrane sales to Chidaitahipping container applications which begathia third quarter of fiscal year 2012.

The decrease in Apio packaging revenues for the mianths ended February 26, 2012 compared to the pariod last year was
primarily due to decreased sales of BreatheWay manels to Chiquita for use on avocado applicati@ns @esult of Chiquita placing initial
large orders of BreatheWay membranes during teelialf of last year to build inventory for avocamgplications.

Apio Export

Apio export revenues consist of revenues genefadetithe purchase and sale of primarily whole corditydfruit and vegetable
products to Asia by Cal-Ex. Apio records revenqgeas to the sale price to third parties becautakits title to the product while in transit.

The increase in revenues in Apio’s export busifiesthe three months ended February 26, 2012 coedarthe same period last
year was not significant to consolidated Landeenees

The increase in revenues in Apio’s export busifiesthe nine months ended February 26, 2012 condparthe same period last
year was due to a 12% increase in unit volume shledo a greater volume of fruit and vegetablésghavailable to export coupled wi
favorable pricing for export products thus farigchl year 2012.
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Hyaluronan-based (“HA”) Biomaterials

Lifecore principally generates revenue throughgale of products containing HA. Lifecore primgasiells products to customers in
three medical areas: (1) Ophthalmic, which repreeskaver 70% of Lifecors’revenues in fiscal year 2011, (2) Orthopediccivepresente
nearly 20% of Lifecore’s revenues in fiscal yeat 2@nd (3) Veterinary/Other.

The decrease in Lifecore’s revenues for the threeths ended February 26, 2012 compared to the parigdl last year was due to a
10% decrease in revenues in Lifecore’s fermentdiisiness and a 6% decrease in revenues in Lifsaseptic filling business, primarily

for Ophthalmic products both due to lower unit \vrokisales during this year’s third quarter comp&oddst year’s third quarter a s a result of
the timing of shipments within the fiscal year.

The increase in Lifecore’s revenues for the ninatm® ended February 26, 2012 compared to the sarmgdast year was due to a
2% increase in revenues in Lifecore’s fermentaliosiness, primarily for Ophthalmic products and@i@icrease in revenues in Lifecore’s
aseptic filling business, primarily for new busis@®velopment revenues.

Technology Licensing
Technology licensing revenues consist of reveneegi@ated from the licensing agreements with Momsait Products and Nitta.
The decrease in Technology Licensing revenuesithiree and nine months ended February 26, 20hpared to the same periods

of the prior year was primarily due to the termioatof the Monsanto Agreement (see Note 4) at titeaf the second quarter of fiscal year

2012. The quarterly revenues and gross profitferTechnology Licensing business from Monsantoliesh $1.35 million per quarter prior
to the termination.

Gross Profit (in thousands):

Three Three
months months Ninemonths  Nine months
ended ended ended ended
2/26/12 2/27/11 Change 2/26/12 2/127/11 Change
Apio Value Added $ 497¢ $ 2,87 73% $ 14,80 $ 11,827 25%
Apio Packaging 49¢ 39¢ 25% 1,261 1,562 (19%)
Food Technology 5,47¢ 3,27¢ 67% 16,06¢ 13,38¢ 20%
Apio Export 917 93€ (2%) 3,73: 3,09¢ 20%
Total Apio 6,39¢ 4.21( 52% 19,80: 16,48’ 20%
HA 6,62¢ 6,79¢ (3%) 14,60: 15,20¢ (4%)
Tech. Licensing 154 1,47( (90%) 3,02¢ 4,45¢ (32%)
Total Gross Profit $ 13,17: $ 12,47¢ 6% $ 37,43 $ 36,15( 4%

General

There are numerous factors that can influence gnadg including product mix, customer mix, manctiaring costs, volume, sale
discounts and charges for excess or obsolete iomerib name a few. Many of these factors inflleeoc are interrelated with other
factors. The Company includes in cost of salesfalhe costs related to the sale of products aoatance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. These costs include thiedohg: raw materials (including produce, casegeds and packaging), direct labor,
overhead (including indirect labor, depreciatiomd éacility related costs) and shipping and shigpielated costs. The following are the

primary reasons for the changes in gross profitferthree and nine months ended February 26, @hpared to the same periods last year
as outlined in the table above.

Apio Value-Added

The increase in gross profit for Apio’s value-addedetable business for the three months endedi&gh26, 2012 compared to the
same period last year was primarily due to the if8%@ase in revenues coupled with the fact thainduhe third quarter of last year Apio
experienced significant weather related producelgupsues that increased the cost of sourcingymedvhich resulted in lower gross profits

during last year's third quarter. Value-added gnosrgin for the three months ended February 262 2as 8.9% compared to 6.1% for the
third quarter last year.
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The increase in gross profit for Apio’s value-addedetable business for the nine months ended &sb26, 2012 compared to the
same period last year was primarily due to the I®@ase in revenues and the weather related pealyaply issues during the November to
February period of fiscal year 2011.

Apio Packaging

The increase in Apio packaging gross profit for tffree months ended February 26, 2012 compardtteame period last year was
primarily due to banana membrane sales to Chidoiitahipping container applications which begathi third quarter of fiscal year 2012.

The decrease in Apio packaging gross profit forrtime months ended February 26, 2012 comparedetsaine period last year was
primarily due to decreased sales of BreatheWay manals to Chiquita for use for avocado applicat@ss result of Chiquita placing initial
large orders of BreatheWay membranes during tielialf of last year to build inventory for avocamgplications.

Apio Export

Apio’s export business is a buy/sell businessthalizes a gross margin in the 5-8% range. Theesdse in gross profit for Apio’s
export business during the three months ended Bgb#6, 2012 compared to the same period lastwaamot significant to consolidated
Landec gross profit.

The increase in gross profit for Apio’s export mesis during the nine months ended February 26, @&hpared to the same period
last year was primarily due to the 20% increasevgnues.

HA-based Biomaterials
The decrease in Lifecore’s gross profit duringttiree months ended February 26, 2012 comparedc teatime period last year was
due to the 9% decrease in revenues partially offgétcreased production resulting in greater ogachabsorption in the current period which

results in more overhead being allocated to inwgntersus cost of sales.

The decrease in Lifecore’s gross profit duringnire months ended February 26, 2012 compared teatime period last year was
primarily due to a product mix change to higheesaif lower margin products.

Technology Licensing
The decrease in Technology Licensing gross profittie three and nine months ended February 2@ @®hpared to the same
periods of the prior year was primarily due to téemination of the Monsanto Agreement (see Notat4he end of the second quarter of fit

year 2012. The quarterly revenues and gross goofthe Technology Licensing business from Monsdrad been $1.35 million per quar
prior to the termination.
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Operating Expensegqin thousands):

Three Three
months months Nine months  Nine months
ended ended ended ended
2/26/12 2/27/11 Change 2/26/12 2/27/11 Change
Research and
Development:
Apio $ 27¢ % 284 2%) $ 79z % 758 5%
HA 1,23¢ 1,04¢ 18% 3,47¢ 3,191 9%
Tech. Licensing 962 94t 2% 2,87¢ 2,81¢ 2%
Total R&D $ 247 $ 2,27¢ 9% $ 714z $ 6,762 6%
Selling, General and
Administrative:
Apio $ 3,72: $ 3,19¢ 16% $ 10,75¢ $ 9,411 14%
HA 1,26¢ 1,357 (7%) 3,381 3,60¢ (6%)
Tech. Licensing 94 93 1% 317 312 2%
Corporate 1,58( 1,80¢ (13%) 4,71¢ $ 4,852 (3%)
Total S,G&A $ 6,66/ $ 6,45¢ 3% $ 19,17: $ 18,18: 5%

Research and Development

Landec’s research and development expenses cprisigtrily of expenses involved in product developimend commercialization
initiatives. Research and development efforts@bAre focused on the Company’s proprietary Be\athy membranes used for packaging
produce, with recent focus on extending the slifelof bananas and other shelf-life sensitive valgies and fruit. In the HA business, the
research and development efforts are focused orpneducts and applications for HA-based biomatsridh the Technology Licensing
business, the research and development efforf®emsed on uses for the proprietary Intelimer paysoutside of food and HA.

The increase in research and development expemstefthree and nine months ended February 2@ 26hpared to the same
periods last year was primarily due to increasedagibexpenses driven by increased R&D efforts aigged with new product developmen
Lifecore.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses cbpegisarily of sales and marketing expenses assatiaith Landec’s product sales
and services, business development expenses dhdmnstadministrative expenses.

The decrease in selling, general and administratkpenses for the three months ended February02@, ®as not significant.

The increase in selling, general and administraxgenses for the nine months ended February 2@, @mpared to the same
period last year was primarily due to increasedssahd marketing expenses at Apio due to the iser@arevenue, primarily brokerage fees
on higher revenues and accruing a portion of thergial annual bonuses at Apio as a result of Apiceeding its revenue and operating
income plan for the nine months ended Februar®@62 compared to accruing no bonuses during the gemod of last year.

Other (in thousands):

Three Three

months months Nine months  Nine months

ended ended ended ended

2/26/12 2/27/11 Change 2/26/12 2/27/11 Change
Dividend Income $ 281 $ 47 49&% $ 844 $ 47 169€%
I nterest | ncome $ 63 $ 12( (48%) $ 21¢ $ 344 (36%)
I nterest Expense $ (15%) $ (196) (22%) $ (492) $ (637) (22%)
Other Income (Exp) $ 3,50¢ $ (44) NM 4595 $ (14€) N/M
Income Taxes $ (2,920 $ (1,350) 11€% $ (6,079 $ (3,91) 55%
Non controlling Int. $ (49 $ (24) 104% $ (288 % (251 15%
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Dividend Income

The increase in dividend income was due to divideamtrued from the $15 million preferred stock stweent in Windset made on
February 15, 2011 which yields a cash dividend.6%annually. The $281,000 and $844,000 representsied dividends for the three and
nine months ended February 26, 2012, respectivEte $47,000 accrued for the three and nine mdathyear was for the period February
14, 2011 through February 27, 2011.

Interest Income

The decrease in interest income for the three am@lmonths ended February 26, 2012 compared tsdime periods last year was
primarily due to lower cash balances reflecting use of cash to purchase our minority investmefindset and to purchase the Company’s
common stock on the open market. Interest incoae further negatively impacted by lower yields wveistments due to declines in interest
rates.

Interest Expense

The decrease in interest expense during the timeé@iae months ended February 26, 2012 compardgbteame periods last year
was due to paying down the credit facilities by3#hillion since the end of the third quarter oftlgsar.

Other Income (Expense)

The other income for the three and nine monthe@abruary 26, 2012 is comprised of an increa$d & million and $4.7 millior
respectively, in the fair market value of our Wiatlswestment. During the three and nine montHagifyear the other expense of $44,000
and $146,000, respectively, was for the amortinatibthe discount on Lifecore’s earn out obligation

Income Taxes

The increase in the income tax expense for thetanel nine months ended February 26, 2012 is pijntare to a 55% and 32%
increase, respectively, in net income before taxaspared to the same periods last year. The &ffetztx rate for both the three and nine
months ended February 26, 2012 was 38% compar&Ptofor the same periods in fiscal year 2011.

Non controlling Interest
The non controlling interest consists of the lidifgartners’ equity interest in the net income ofcA@ooling, LP.

The change in the non controlling interest forttiree and nine months ended February 26, 2012 aehpa the same periods last
year was not significan

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of February 26, 2012, the Company had cash asld equivalents of $12.5 million, a net increas$4oé million from $8.1
million at May 29, 2011.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Landec generated $8.5 million of cash from opegagictivities during the nine months ended Febr@#r2012 compared to
generating $12.4 million from operating activitfes the nine months ended February 27, 2011. primeary sources of cash from operating
activities during the nine months ended February2P@2 were from generating $10.2 million of netdme and $5.6 million in non-cash
operating items, such as amortization and depieniand stock based compensation. The sourcessbffcom operations were partially
offset by the $4.7 million non-cash change in tie ¥alue of our investment in Windset and a netéase of $2.5 million in working capital,
excluding the decrease in income taxes receivalblgh is offset by the tax benefit from stock-basedhpensation. The primary changes in
working capital during the nine months ended Felyr@&, 2012 which increased working capital wenea(&1.7 million increase in accounts
receivable primarily due to a $1.8 million incre&seeceivables at Apio as a result of increasddevadded sales, (b) a $2.3 million decrease
in accounts payable due to the timing of payments(a) a $2.3 million decrease in deferred reveassociated with the Monsanto Agreen
during the first six months of fiscal year 2012.oiking capital decreased as a result of colledfiregb4.0 million termination payment from
Monsanto on November 30, 2011.
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Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the nimenths ended February 26, 2012 was $862,000 conhparest cash used in
investing activities of $31.2 million for the sameriod last year. The net cash provided by inagstictivities was from $3.0 million of net
proceeds from the sale and maturities of marketsdxtarities. Net cash used in investing activitv@s from the purchase of $3.9 million of
property, plant and equipment primarily for thetfier automation of Apio’s value-added processingifg and facility modifications and
purchased equipment to support Lifecore’s busigesath.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for the mmenths ended February 26, 2012 was $3.3 millionpaoed to net cash used in
financing activities of $2.4 million for the samerjpd last year. The net cash used in financitigities during the first nine months of fiscal
year 2012 was primarily due to $3.3 million of l-term debt payments and the repurchase of $5.@milif the Company’s outstanding
Common Stock, partially offset by the tax benefiini stock-based compensation of $5.5 million.

Capital Expenditures

During the nine months ended February 26, 2012deampurchased vegetable processing equipment pwetthe further
automation of Apio’s value added processing facdihd facility modifications and purchased equipttersupport Lifecore’s business
growth. These expenditures represented the maffrthe $3.9 million of capital expenditures.

Debt

On April 30, 2010, Lifecore entered into a $20 raill Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank N.A. (Bif¢ Fargo”) with a five-
year term that provides for equal monthly principayments plus interest. The Credit Agreementainstcertain restrictive covenants, wh
require Lifecore to meet certain financial testgJuding minimum levels of net income, minimum duratio, minimum fixed coverage ratio
and maximum capital expenditures. All of Lifecara'ssets have been pledged to secure the delrteidqursuant to the Credit
Agreement. Landec is the guarantor of the debt.

On May 4, 2010, the Company entered into an inteats swap agreement that has the economic effecbdifying the variable
interest obligations associated with the $20 mill@redit Agreement so that the interest payabdffectively fixed at a rate of 4.24%.

Landec is not a party to any agreements with, orrodments to, any special purpose entities thatldvoanstitute material off-
balance sheet financing other than the operatmgeleommitments.

Landec's future capital requirementd dépend on numerous factors, including the pragodsts research and development
programs; the continued development of marketiatgssand distribution capabilities; the abilityl@hdec to establish and maintain new
collaborative and licensing arrangements; any d@ti® pursue additional acquisition opportunitiegather conditions that can affect the
supply and price of produce, the timing and amoifiaryy, of payments received under licensing awkarch and development agreements;
the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecgtidefending and enforcing intellectual properghts; the ability to comply with regulatory
requirements; the emergence of competitive teclyyodmd market forces; the effectiveness of prodantmercialization activities and
arrangements; and other factors. If Landexirrently available funds, together with theiinédly generated cash flow from operations are
sufficient to satisfy its capital needs, Landec lddue required to seek additional funding througieo arrangements with collaborative
partners, additional bank borrowings and publiprivate sales of its securities. There can bessarance that additional funds, if required,
will be available to Landec on favorable termstifll.
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Landec believes that its cash from operatiaiong with existing cash, cash equivalents aarketable securities will be sufficient to
finance its operational and capital requirementsafdeast the next twelve months.

ltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

There have been no material changes to the Congparayket risk during the first nine months of fisgaar 2012.
Item 4. Controlsand Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management evaluated, with participation of©hief Executive Officer and our Chief Financiaffioér, the effectiveness of o
disclosure controls and procedures as of the ettaegberiod covered by this Quarterly Report omi-&é0-Q. Based on this evaluation, our
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial 0&r have concluded that our disclosure controts@ocedures are effective in ensuring
that information required to be disclosed in repdited under the Exchange Act is recorded, praxssummarized and reported within the
time periods specified by the Securities and Exgeabommission, and are effective in providing reasbe assurance that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in sucbrtsjis accumulated and communicated to the Conipamgnagement, including its Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, ggeopriate to allow timely decisions regarding riegd disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repaortin

There were no changes in our internal controls &xancial reporting during the fiscal quarter eddeebruary 26, 2012 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, our internal controls over finaatreporting.

PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION
ltem 1. Legal Proceedings

As of the date of this report, the Company is npady to any legal proceedings.
Item 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes to the Congpaslyfactors which are included and describethénForm 10-K for the fiscal
year ended May 29, 2011 filed with the Securitied Exchange Commission on August 8, 2(
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ltem 2.  Unregistered Sales of Equity Securitiesnd Use of Proceeds
(c) The following table contains the Company’sc&teepurchases of equity securities for the thirdrter of the fiscal year 2012:

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

(©) (d)
Total Number of Maximum Number (or
(@) (b) Shares (or Units) Approximate Dollar
Purchased as Part Value) of Shares (or
Total Number of Average Price of Publicly Units) that May Yet
Shares (or Units) Paid per Share ( or Announced Plans Be Purchased Under
Period (1) Purchased Unit) or Programs the Plans or Programs
Month #1
37,184 $5.44 37,184 $3,824,000
November 28, 201
to December 25, 2011
Month #2
-0- -0- -0- $3,824,000
December 26, 2011
to January 22, 2012
Month #3
-0- -0- -0- $3,824,000
January 23, 2012 to
February 26, 2012
TOTAL 37,184 $5.44 37,184 $3,824,000

(1) The reported periods conform to the Compafigial calendar composed of thirteen weeks undewaek, 4 week and 5 week structure.

On July 14, 2010, the Company announced that tleedBaf Directors of the Company had approved ti@dishment of a stock
repurchase plan which allows for the repurchaagdb $10 million of the Company’s Common StockeTCompany may repurchase its
Common Stock from time to time in open market pas#s or in privately negotiated transactions. tirhimg and actual number of shares
purchased is at the discretion of management o€tdrapany and will depend on a variety of factams|uding stock price, corporate and
regulatory requirements, market conditions, thatiet attractiveness of other capital deploymeptoofunities and other corporate
priorities. The stock repurchase program doeohlgate Landec to acquire any amount of its Comi@tmtk and the program may be
modified, suspended or terminated at any timeeathmpany’s discretion without prior notice.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.
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Iltem 4.

Item 5.

Iltem 6.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Secity Holders
[Removed and Reserved.]
Other Information
None.
Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Exhibit Title:

10.35 Executive Employment Agreement betwibe Registrant and Gary T. Steele dated as ofaigri, 2012, incorporated |
reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the Registrant's @urReport on Form 8-K dated February 15, 2012.

31.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to secB®2 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to sec®2 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to sec@@6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to sec®@6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

+  Filed herewith.

101.INS** XBRL Instance

101.SCH**XBRL Taxonomy Extension Scher

101.CAL**XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculatic

101.DEF**XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definitio

101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labe

101.PRE*XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentati

** XBRL Information is furnished and not filed or a partaafegistration statement or prospectus for puipossections 11 «
12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, ésrakzl not filed for purposes of section 18 of theuies
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwisetisubject to liability under these sectia

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causidRbport to be signed on

behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

Date:

LANDEC CORPORATION

By: /s/ Gregory S. Skinner
Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial
Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

March 28, 2012
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Gary T. Steele, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly reportForm 10-Q of Landec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quartexport does not contain any untrue statement chtemal fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finandi@iesnents, and other financial information includethis quarterly report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this
quarterly report;

4, The registrant's other certifying offi and | are responsible for establishing and taimiimg disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f))for the registrant and have:

€) designed such disclosamols and procedures, or caused such disclosunteats and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg fperiod in which this quarterly report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internaltmalrover financial reporting, or caused such ingcontrol over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectivenetthe registrant's disclosure controls and ptoces and presented in this quarterly report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of tHegeovered by this quarterly report based
on such evaluation, and

(d) disclosed in this quargadport any change in the registrant’s internaitca over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (thgsteant’s fourth quarter in the case of an anmepbrt) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant's other certifying offi and | have disclosed, based on our most resahiation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant’'s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) all significant deficieesiand material weaknesses in the design or opermattinternal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaize report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or nwiterial, that involves management or other em@syeho have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: March 28, 2012
/s/ Gary T. Steele

Gary T. Steele
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Gregory S. Skinner, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly reportForm 10-Q of Landec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quartexport does not contain any untrue statement chtemal fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finandi@iesnents, and other financial information includethis quarterly report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this
quarterly report;

4, The registrant's other certifying offi and | are responsible for establishing and taimiimg disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f))for the registrant and have:

€) designed such disclosamols and procedures, or caused such disclosunteats and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg fperiod in which this quarterly report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internaltmalrover financial reporting, or caused such ingcontrol over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles ;

(c) evaluated the effectivenetthe registrant's disclosure controls and ptoces and presented in this quarterly report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of tHegeovered by this quarterly report based
on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this quargadport any change in the registrant’s internaitca over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (thgsteant’s fourth quarter in the case of an anmepbrt) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant's other certifying offi and | have disclosed, based on our most resahiation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant’'s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) all significant deficieesiand material weaknesses in the design or opermattinternal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaize report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or nwiterial, that involves management or other em@syeho have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: March 28, 2012
/s/ Gregory S. Skinner

Gregory S. Skinner
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Landaxibration (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theipdrending February 26,
2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange C@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, GarySteele, Chief Executive Officer and
President of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18.0. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 ofaheaBes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejrerements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Refairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 28, 2012

/sl Gary T. Steele

Gary T. Steele
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
(Principal Executive Officer

*

The foregoing certification is being furnishealedy pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OAleyof 2002 (subsections

(a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title UBited States Code) and is not being filed as gfathe Form 10-Q or as
a separate disclosure docume



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Landawribration (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theipdrending February 26, 2012 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Gregory S.rdler, Vice President of Finance and
Adminstration and Chief Financial Officer of the @pany, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, amgptatl pursuant to § 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejrerements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Refairly presents, in all material respects, timafficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 28, 2012

/sl Gregory S. Skinner

Name Gregory S. Skinn
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer

* The foregoing certification is being furnishedlely pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanegyOXtt of 2002 (subsections
(a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title UBited States Code) and is not being filed as gfathe Form 10-Q or as
a separate disclosure docume



